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"DATE 3 AUGUST 15, 1994
TO: LEGISLATIVE RULE-MAKING REVIEW COMMITTEE

FROM: WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL NURSES

LEGISLATIVE RULE TITLE; CONJINUING EDUCATION

1. Authorizing statute{s) citation ) §30-7-1 - 2nd ;xklff

2. a. Date filed in State Register with Notice of Hearing

JUNE 29, 1994

b. What other notice, including advertising, did you give
of the hearing?

SPECTAL EDITIQN OF THE RN NEWSLETTER

-~

c. Date of Hearing(s) JULY 28, 1994

d. Attach 1list of persons who appeared at hearing,
comments received, amendments, reasons for amendments.

Attached £ No comments received

e. Date you filed in State Register the agency approved
proposed Legislative Rule following public hearing:
(be exact) .

AUIGUST 15 1¢as

f. Name and phone number(s) of agency person{s) to
contact for additional information:

JANET M. FAIRCHILD, MS, RN 558-3596




If the statute under which you promulgated the submitted
rules requires certain findings and determinations to be
made as a condition precedent to their promulgation:

a. Give the date upon which you filed in the State
Register a notice of the time and place of a hearing
for the taking of evidence and a general description
of the issues to be decided.

JUNE 29, 199,4

b. Date of hearing:  JULY 29, 1994

c. On what date did you file in the State Register the
findings and determinations required together with the
reasons therefor? S

AUGUST 15, 1994

d. Attach findings and determinations and reasons:

Attached YES




Janet H. Fairchild, M.8., R.N. TELEPHONE:
Executive Secretary {304) 558-3536
(304) 558-3728

FAX (304) 558-3666

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL NURSES
101 Dee Drive '
Charleston, WV 25311-1620

May 5, 1994

The Honorable Ken Heckler
Secretary of State
Building 1, Suite 157=K
1900 Kanawha Blvd., East
Charleston, WV 25305-0770

Dear Mr. Heckler,

The Board in session May 4 - 5, 1994 approved for filing
proposed legislative rule 19CSR11 titled Continuing Education.

A brief summary of the rule follows:

This legislative rule establishes regquirements for continuing
education for re-licensure of registered professional nurses. It
defines terms used in the rule; sets forth the amount of continuing
education reguired per phase-in vear, and each reporting period
thereafter; sets forth exceptions to continuing education
regquirements; identifies approved providers of continuing
education; sets forth minimum standards for approved providers;
sets forth acceptable continuing education activities; and
describes activities that are not acceptable continuing education
activities.

The Board’s rationale for proposing this rule follows:

The Board hereby finds that with the rapidly changing
technological advances in the science of nursing, with the
evoluticonary changes in the health care delivery system already
beginning to occur, and with health care reforms being proposed
both nationally and within the state, that the safety cof the public
will be better assured with the implementation of mandatory
continuing education for re-licensure of registered professional
nurses.

Sincerely,

%M%/.JM%

Janet H. Fairchild M.S., R.N.
Executive Secretary




Rule Title: : 19CSR11 Continuing Education

APPENDIX E
FISCAL NOTE FOR PROPOSED RULES

Type of Rule: h:4 Legislative Interpretive _ Procedural !

Agency WV Board of Examiners for Registered Professional Nlrses

Address 161 Dee Drive

Charleston, WV 25311-1620

Effect of Proposed Rule

ANNUAL FISCAL YEAR

INCRIAGE DICRRAST cormenr 96 | e G5 =rrarTER f| 1996 FY
ESTIMATED TOTAL $3c,000 | % - S o $ _o- 530’000
COST
PERSONAL SERVICES 25,000 - =0 25,000
CURRENT EXPENSE = rOA _ A 5.000
REPAIRS & - - -0 -
ALTERNATIONS
EQUIPMENT - - —-0— -
OTHER ~ - - - .

Explanation of above estimates’

Expenses for implementation will begin to be incurred during the license. renewal
period fall 1996 with required "euditing" of license renewal forms for compliance
with continuing education requirements. Additional personnel/staff time will be
necessary for implementatiocn.

Objectives of these rules:

The objective of the rule is to require mandatory continuing education for license
renewal of the registered professional nurse.




Rule Title: 19CSR11 Continuing Education

4. Explanation of Overall Economic Impact of Proposed Rule.

A. Economic Impact on State Government.

—nene~—
This Board is a special revenue agency.

B. Economic Impact on Political Subdivisions; Specific
Industries, Specific groups of Citizens.

The 1nd1v1dLal, registered professional nurse will incur expenses related

to maintaining (mandatory with rule) continuing education to assure .
—continued professiocnzl competence.

C. Economic Impact on Citizens/Public at Large.

No direct impact on citizens or public at large.

Date: fZ%Zzéz_fi i

Sl(jijure of Agency Head or Authorized Reprensentative

2 oree AL




TITLE 19
LEGISLATIVE RULES
STATE BOARD OF EXAMINERS
FOR REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL NURSES

SERIES 11
CONTINUING EDUCATION

§19-11-1.General.

1.1.

1.2,
1.3.

1.4,

Scope. -- This legislative rule establishes requirements for continuing education
for re-licensure of registered professional nurses.

Authority. -- West Virginia Code §30-7-4 and §30-1-4.

Filing Date. -~

Effective Date. --

§19-11-2.Definition of Terms.

2.1,

2.2.

2.3.

"Approved provider" means 2 local, state, or national agency, organization or
association recognized by the board.

" Audit" means the selection of licensees for verification of satisfactory completion
of continuing education requirements during a specified time period; or the
selection of approved providers for verification of adherence to continuing
education approved provider requirements during a specified time period.
"Continuing education” means those learning activities intended to build upon the
educational and experiential basis of the registered professional nurse for the
enhancement of practice, education, administration, research, or theory
development to the end of improving the heaith of the public.

The practice of "registered professional nursing” according the West Virginia

Code §30-7-1 (b) . . . "shall mean the performance for compensation of any




service requiring substantial specialized judgement and skill based on knowledge
and application of principles of nursing derived from the biological, physical and
social sciences, such as responsible supervision of a patient requiring skill in
observation of symptoms and reactions and the accurate recording of the facts,
or the supervision and teaching of other persons with respect to such principles
of nursing, or in the administration of medications and treatments as prescribed
by a licensed physician or a licensed dentist, or the application of such nursing
procedures as involve understanding of cause and effect in order to safeguard life

and health of a patient and others; . . ."

2.5. "College credit courses” means those courses offered by a recognized educational
institution, and may be approved as continuing education.

2.6  "Independent study" means a program of learning designed by an approved
provider for the registered professional nurse who completes the program at the
individual’s pace, e.g., home study, programmed instruction.

2.7. "Self-study" means a program of learning designed by the licensee to enhance
knowledge and skill and not offered by an approved provider,

§19-11-3.Continuing Education.

3.1. Continuing education requirements for re-licensure.

3.1.1. Each applicant for renewal of a license, if the license is currently active,
or reinstatement of a license if a license is lapsed or on the non-practicing
list, shall verify that he or she has satisfactorily completed thirty (30)

contact hours of continuing education during the prescribed two (2) year




3.1.2.

3.1.3.

reporting period.

Units of measurement used for continuing education courses are as

follows:

a. A contact hour is a unit of measurement that describes 50 minutes
of an approved, organized leaming experience, either didactic or

clinical experience;

b. 1 continuing education unit (C.E.U.) = 10 contact hours of
instruction;
c. 1 successfully completed academic semester hour = 13 contact

hours of instruction; and
d. 1 successfully completed academic quarter hour = 10 contact
hours of instruction.
Beginning January 1, 1997, each registered professional nurse with an
active license to practice registered professional nursing in West Virginia
shall complete thirty (30) contact hours of continuing education, as
approved by this rule, every two calendar years. On or before December
31, 1999, and every other December 31 thereafter, each registered
professional nurse shall file a report of such continuing education activities
with the board at the time the licensee files an application for renewal of
his or her license to practice registered professional nursing in West
Virginia,

The board shall not grant credit for identical continuing education




3.2.

activities submitted during any two (2) year report period. Continuing

education credits from a previous two (2) year reporting period may not
be used, nor shall credits be accumulated for use in a future two (2) year

reporiing period.

Exceptions to continuing education requirements.

The board shall exempt from the continuing education requirements a licensee

who qualifies for exceptions set forth in this rule.

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

A licensee who obtains a license for the first time in West Virginia during
the first twelve months of any twenty-four month reporting period shall
complete twelve (12) contact hours in approved continuing education
activities, as set forth in this rule, before the end of the current reporting
period. A licensee who obtains a license for the first time in West
Virginia during the second twelve (12) months of any twenty-four (24)
month reporting pericd is exempt from the continuing education
requirements for the entire reporting period.

A licensee who claims the foliowing exception shall retain evidence of
government service or active duty with the military and shall present such
evidence to the board upon request. A licensee who is a government
employee working as a registered professional nurse outside the United
States or who is serving on active duty with the military for more than
three (3) months, but less than twelve (12) months of any twenty four (24)

month reporting period is required to complete twelve (12) contact hours




3.3.

3.2.3.

of approved continuing education activities as set forth in this rule, before
the end of the current reporting period. A licensee who is a government
employee working as a registered professional nurse outside the United
States or who is serving on active duty with the military for more than
twelve (12) months of any twenty-four (24) month reporting period is
exempt from the continuing education requirements for the entire period.
The board may grant a waiver to a licensee who has a physical or mental
disability or illness during all or a portion of the two (2) year reporting
period. A waiver provides for an extension of time or exception from
some or all of the continuing education requirements. Any licensee may
request an application for a waiver from the board. The board shall
approve or deny an application for waiver after review of the application,
The board shall not grant an exception from continuing education
requirements for more than one (1}, two (2) year reporting period, as set

forth in this rule.

- Failure to meet requirements or exceptions to requirements.

The board may take the following actions if a licensee fails to meet the continuing

education requirements or the conditions for exceptions for continuing education

requirements for renewal of licensure.

3.3.1. The board may place the license on inactive status without penalty and

may waive the continuing education requirements, providing the licensee

notifies the board in writing of his or her desire to have the board place




3.4,

3.5.

3.3.2.

his or her license on inactive status before the last (business) day of the
reporting period. This wriiten notification must be submitted with the
completed renewal application indicating the desire to place the license on
inactive status. The board shall not charge a fee to place the license on
inactive status.

The board shall lapse the license of any person who fails to notify the
board, in writing, prior to the last (business) day of the reporting period

that he or she wishes to place his or her license on the inactive status.

Reinstatement of a license from inactive or lapsed status.

A person wishing to reinstate a license from an inactive status or from lapsed

status shall comply with the following requirements. The person shalf:

3.4.1.

3.4.2.

3.4.3.

3.4.4,

make application for reinstatement of the license from an inactive status
or lapsed status;

meet the continuing education requirements as set forth in this rule;

pay the fee for reinstatement of lapsed license as specified in West
Virginia Code §30-7-8 of fifty dollars ($50.00); and

submit legible copies of certificates of attendance at continuing education
offerings, transcripts of courses taken, notices received from the board
granting special approval of informal offerings from non-approved

providers, and other information as requested by the board.

Audit of licensees.

The board may select any licensee who holds a current license to audit for




compliance with continuing competence requirements.

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.5.4.

3.5.5.

To comply with the audit reguest from the board, a licensee shall submit
legible copies of certificates of attendance at continuing education
offerings, transcripts of courses taken, notices received from the board
granting special approval of informal offerings from non-approved
providers, and other information as requested by the board.

The licensee shall submit the required documents within thirty (30) days
of the cate he or she receives notification of the audit. The board may
grant an extension of time for submission of the documents, on an
individual basis, and in cases of hardship, providing the licensee makes
a written request for an extension of time and provides justification for
such request.

Licensees are required to keep certificates of attendance at continuing
education offerings, letters verifying special approval from informal
offerings from non-approved providers, transcripts of courses, and
documentation of compliance with exceptions for a two (2) year period
following submission of continuing education activities to the board.
The board shall notify the licensee of the satisfactory completion of the
audit.

If a person fails to submit the audit information requested by the board or
meet standards in subsection 3.1.2. or 3.1.3. of this rule, the board shall

not renew z license before such audit is completed.




3.5.6. The board shall take action as prescribed in §19CSR9, Disciplinary
Action, against any licensee who submits false information to the board.
3.2.7. A licensee who fails to notify the board of a current mailing address is not
absolved from the audit requirements, The board shall not renew a

license before the audit is completed.

§19-11-4.Continuing Education Providers.

4.1.

4.2

The board may recognize as approved providers an agency which meets

minimum provider standards as outlined in section 4.2, and 4.5. of this rule.

4.1.1. The board shall consider written requests to designate other local, state or
national agencies, organizations and associates as approved providers.

4.1.2. The board shall maintain a current list of approved providers which shall
be available to the public upon request. Providers who fail to meet the
minimum accepiable provider standards shall be notified, in writing, of
specific deficiencies and given a limited period of time to correct
deficiencies. An approved provider who does not correct deficiencies
within the specified time period may be removed from the list of approved
providers.

Minimum standards for approved providers.

4.2.1. The duration of the activity shall be at least one (1) contact hour.

4.2.2, The provider shall prepare written objectives, in measurable terms, which
describe what a licensee can expect to leamn.

4,2.3. The program content shall relate to the program objectives.




4.3.

4.4,

4.2.4.

4.2.5.

4.2.6.

4.2.7.

The provider shall furnish the instructor’s qualifications in the subject
areas to be taught to the participant, in writing.

The provider shall establish a written method to determine whether the
participant has achieved the stated objectives of the offering. Methods
may include but are not limited to self-evaluation check lists or tests.
The provider shall furnish a written statement of completion to each
participant who completes each continuing education activity. The
statement shall be signed by the instructor or an individual designated by
the instructor, and shall contain the following information: the name of the
continuing education offering, the number of contact hours, the date of the
offering, and the name of the participant.

The provider shzll maintain a record of individuals who attend a

continuing education offering for a period of not less than three (3) years.

Independent study.

4.3.1.

4.3.2.

Independent study activities may include learning, such as educational
television, audio cassettes, and printed media, designed as programmed
learning units.

Contact hour equivalents for approved independent study shall be based

on contact hours awarded by the approved provider.

Self study.

4.4.1.

Self study may include activities which the licensee determines will

enhance skills and knowledge of nursing, such as reading professional




4.5.

journals, watching educational television and listening to audio cassettes

that are not designed as programmed learning units, and are not approved

by an approved provider,

4.4.2. The board shall base contact hour equivalents for self study on the actual

time spent by the licensee on the self study activity.

4.4.3. The board will permit credit of a total of five (5) contact hours of self

study toward the continuing education requirement for any two (2) year

reporting period.

Continuing education subjects.

4.5.1. Continuing education offerings shall reflect the educational needs for the

learner in order to meet the health care needs of the consumer and may

consist of one or more of the following subject areas:

a.

b.

Professional nursing practice and special health care problems;
The biological, physical, social and behavioral sciences;

The legal aspects of professional nursing practice;

Management of health care personnel and patient care;

Teaching and learning process for health care personnel or for
patients; and

Subjects relating to professional nursing practice which are
required as part of a formal nursing program and which are more

advanced than those completed for original licensure.

4.5.2. The following activities are not accepiable for continuing education credit;

10




Job related clinical practice;

Development and presentation of programs as part of the licensee’s
on-going job responsibilities;

Orientation and update of policies and procedures specific to the
licensee’s employing facility; and

Activities which are part of a licensee’s usual job responsibility.

11
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EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Good
morning.

I am Janet Fairchild, Executive
Secretary for the State Becard of Nursing.

We have with us today two of our six
Board members. We have Ruth Pearson on my right; Patsy
Haslam across the table.

At this time we will begin the public
hearing to receive oral and written comments on
legislative rule, proposed legislative rules, Series
11, &ontinuing education.

2 staff member of the Board is gcing
around right now to get your signatures on the sign~in
sheet. Please indicate on the sign-in sheet that you
wish to speak to the rules. If you wish to submit
written comments, we will alsc submit those to the
hezaring. I mean to our court reporter here,.

So at this time we are open to
hearing the first person who signed up who wants to
speak to the rules.

Would Irene Caldwell like to speak?

MS. IRENE CALDWELL: No.

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS

62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICAHE, WZST VIRGINIA 25526-9018
PHONE  (304) 757-0622




EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Billie
Fabre?

MS. BILLIE FABRE: No,

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Lisa
Toothman?

MS. LISA TCOTHMAN: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Lois
Fauler?

MS. LOIS FAULER: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FATIRCHILD: Would

Eilizabeth Smith 1like to speak?

M5. ELIZABETH SMITH: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Joanne
Light?

MS, JOANNE LIGHT: Pass, —

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Pardon?

MS. LIGHT: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Twyla

Wallace like to speak?
MS. TWYLA WALLACE: I weuld like to pass for
right now.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS

62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 25526-9018
PHCNE  (304) 737-0622 .




Barbara Banonis like to speak to the rule?

MS. BARBARA BANONIS: ~ “No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Fay--
MS, FAY WOJTOWICZ: Wojtowicz?

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Yes.

MS. FaY WOJTOWICZ: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Karen

Shaffer like to speak?
MS. KAREN SHAFFER: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Would Anne

Gibsen llike to speak?

MS,., ANNE GIBSON: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FATIRCHILD: Cheryl
Frakes?

MS. CHERVYL FRAKES: Frakes.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Okavy.

MS. CHERYL FRAKES: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Judy

Nicholas?
MS. JUDY NICHQCLAS: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Shirley

Shears?

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS

62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
RURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 25326-%018
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MS. SHIRLEY SHEARS: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Linda
Huffen?

MS. LINDA HUFFEN: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Bonnie
Nelson?

MS. BONKIE NELSON: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FATRCHILD: Ramona
Freshour?

ME. RAMONA FRESHOUR: I would like to
reserve.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Susan--

Ms. SUSAN BRUNETTI-COUILLARD: Brunetti-
Couillard?

EXTCUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Yes, Thank
you.

MS. SUSAN BRUNETTI-COUILLARD: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Itt's so
small.

Joan Propst?
MS. JOAN PROPST: I would.

First, let me state for the record

JARET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS

62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICANE, WEST VIRSINIA 25526-9018
PHONZ  (304) 757-0622




that my name is Joan Propst. I am a registered nurse
licensed to practice in the State of West Virginia. I
have five yvears of experience working with the process
of continuing education in nursing and six years of

teaching experience in a baccalaureate degree progran
in nursing. I am gualified _by education and experience
to discuss continuing sducation for registered nurses.

A biographical data form is attached
with my written testimony and is lakeled Exhibit 1.

The testimony which I and my
colleague, Paula Staud, provide today is given on
behalf of the West Virginia Nurses Asscociation. The
West Virginia Nurses Asscciation is the largest single
professional organization for registered nurses in the
State of West Virginia.

The West Virginia Nurses Assoclation
recognizes health care as a fundamental right and
nursing care as a major compenent ¢f health care. The
nature of nursing is reflected in deliberate human
action designed to assist pecple throughout the life
span with health-related activities. Inherent in

nursing are specialized knowledge and abilities which

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPGRTERS

62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 25526-%018
PHONE (304) 757-0&22




are attained through formal education and are
reflective of the changing needs of society. For
nurses in a rapidly changing soclety, malntenance of
nursing competence demands constant effort in order to
promote and improve the health care of clients.

The participation in continuing
education activities provides one means by which nurses
may enhance competence and maintain the standards of
nursing practice. One means of ensuring the
advancement of the discipline of nursing is through
continuing educaticn. To insure the public that
continuing education activities meet established
educational standards, a peer review process was
developad by the West Virginia Nurses Association.
WVNA believes that a variety of perscns and groups
share the responsibility for contributing to the
quality of services through continuing education in
nursing. These perscons and groups are the individual
nurse, the employer, the sponsor of centinuing
education, and the West Virginia Nurses Asscciation.

On kehalf of the West Virginla Nurses

Association, I weuld like to salute the Beoard of

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPDRTERS
62 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 25526-7018
PHONE  (304) 757-1622
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Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses for
proposing these rules. I'm sure they will ke
bheneficial to nursing in West Virginia. And we would
like to offer our comments in the spirit of
cocperation.

The process we undertook to formulate
this testimony was twofold. Coples of the proposed
rule was reviewed by nurses 1in a self-study group
atmosphere on at least two separate occasions. Those
ccmments have been synthesized into this testinony.

In undertaking the formulation of any
new rule, & definition of terms is of paramount
importance. For that reascn we suggest that you
conform the terms you use in the rule as much as
possible with those propounded by the American Nurses
Credentialing Center. While the ANCC is not the only
nationally recognized credentlialing body for registered
nurses, it is certainly the largest and most well
known. Alsc many nurses in advanced practice keep and
maintain their certification through ANCC programs. So
it would be beneficial for all invelved if there

existed some continuity with regard to program

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS
&2 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGiNIA 25526-5018
PHONE (304 757-0422
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definiticn.

With my written testimony we are
previding a glossary used by the ANCC and drawn from
the American Nurses Assccilation's Standards for

Continuing Fducation in Nursing. The glossary is

labeled as Exhibit 2.

We alsco feel that early on we should
address the guestion of the approved provider,.
Something we do not find discussed in the rules 1is the
status of the providers approved by the West Virginia
Nurses Asscciation. This gets heavily inte nursing
educaticn nomenclature. So please bear with me.

The West Virginia Nurses 2Association
is approved by the American Nurses Credentialing
Center, a branch of the American Nurses Association, to

participate in the continuing education process in two

fashicns.

The first is to provide continuing
education. Many of you may be familiar with this from
attending annual conventions. The continuing education

centact hours nurses recelve there are provided by the

West Virginia Nurses Assoclation under its approved
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provider status from the American Nurses Credentialing
Center.

The second way WVNA participates in
the continuing education process is through the
approval of continuing education activities from
sources outside WVNA, I belleve even the Board of
Examiners has had an offering approved. WVNA also
approves entities to be providers of continuing
educaticn,. For instance, Wheeling Hespital, the hone
hospital of the Beoard chair, is a provider of
continuing education. Every two years its continuing
education department submits toc the West Virginia
Nurses Association an application for provider status.

A peer review team of registered
nurses reviews the applicaticon and if it meets the
guidelines established by the American Nurses
Credentialing Center grants the entity provider status.

With provider status the entity can offer whatever

-

continuing educaticn activities it chooses and at the

end of each calendar yealr makes a report to WVNA on the
offerings it has provided.

The purpose of this rather lengthy
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explanation is to form a twefold guestion. First, will
participants in single offerings which have been
approved by the West Virginia Nurses Assoclation be
able to count contact hours towards relicensure?

Notice these offerings have been
approved by the WVNA; they are not being cffered by
WVNA. If not, would the organization seeking apprceval
for the offering alsc have to get apprecval from the
nursing bocard as a provider?

Seccondly, would the cecntinuing
education cofferings provided by approved WVNA
providers, such as Wheeling Hospital, be eligible for
use for relicensure without the approved providers also
applving to the West Virginia Bocard cf Examiners for
Registered Professiocnal Nursing for provider status?

It would seem a great duplication of
work te force providers to seek dual approval,
particularly in light cof the fact that WVNA has a
rigorcus approval process which has just received
naticnal recognition. The West Virginia Board of
Examiners for Licensed Practical Nurses has held that

an approved provider with the West Virginia Nurses
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Assoclaticon dees neot need tTo sesek provider status fron
the LPN Beard. If that is your goal, and we hepe it
is, we would suggest that specific language be included
in the rule.

For purpocsas of the rule, a workable
definition may be: 2aAn accredited approver 1s an
eligible organization credentialed by the American
Nurses Credentialing Center or other nationally
recognized credentialing organization recocgnized by the
West Virginia Board of Examiners for Registered
Professional Nurses, which has submitted to an in-
depth analysis to determine 1ts capacity to approve
guality continuing education over an extended perlod of
time.

An added benefit of adopting this
definition would be that i1t would autcmatically provide
for the Board a vehicle to evaluate continuing
education offerings done cutside ©of the State of West
Virginia and provided by an approved, by a provider
approved by ancther entity accredited by the American
Nursss Credentialing Center.

In line with this we would like to
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suggest the Board revise the rule to make clear that
continuing education hours used by nursss in advanced
practice to maintain their certification also may be
accepted for_relicensure.

We weould suggest vyou delete 2.5 and
2.6, the definitions of formal cffering and informal
cffering, and rather formulate a definition of
continuing education, paren, 2.3, such as: Continuing
education is those learning activities intended to
build upon the education and experiential bases of the
professional nurse for the enhancement of practice,
education, administration, resesarch, or theory
development to the end of improving the health of the
public. <College credit courses offeréd by a recognilzed
educaticnal institution may be approved as continuing
education.

We would suggest 2.7, independent
study, and 2.8, self study, be deleted and the
following inserted in lieu thereof: Independent study
means a self-paced learning activity developed for
individual use which may be offered, paren, provider

directed, or self-prescribed, paren, self-directed.
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We would suggest that 2.1.1.a and
3.2.1.b be deleted and that the following definition ke
included by contact hour: 2 contact hour is a unit of
measurement that descrikes fifty minutes of an
approved,..organized learning experience, either
didactic or clinical experience.

From the standpoint of successful
administration of a program, we guestion the wisdom of
a one-year relicensure period and a two-year continuing
education reporting period. If the relicensure period
is going to remain an annual one, we would suggest an
annual ccontinuing education reporting pericd.

If the Board plans ¢n geoing to a twe-
year relicensure periocd, which is probably a wise move,
then we understand the two-year contlinuing education
system. To make things simpler, it would seem wiser
during the one-year phase-in period to have the
continuing education reguirement at fifteen hours
instead of twelve as the rule states.

Beth the study groups that reviewed
these preoposed rules saw a problem with the dates noted

in 3.1.3. 8ince we now gei our license renewal
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applications sometime in Octoeber for renewal by
January, we would be effectively prevented from using
continuing education credits earned in November and
December to renew our licenses. That could also become
problematic for the Board kecause the Board could not
justly deny scmeone their license if they were taking
continuing education classes after license applications
were 1ssued. We urge you to review these dates and
make the reporting dates convenient for both the
licensees and the Board.

At this time T will conclude my
testimony. Paula Staud will present the remainder of
our ccncerns.

Agalin please let me stress that the
West Virginia Nurses Association supports continuing
education for nurses and applauds the Board for its
actions.

Thank vyou.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Thank you.

I believe the next person we have on
the list is Paula Staud.

Paula, you may begin.
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MS. PaAULA STAUD: For the record, my name is
Paula Staud and I am a registered nurse licensed to
practice in the State of West Virginia. I have five
yvears of experience as a director of nursing in an
acute care, one-hundred-ked hospital and thirteen
years' sxperience as a nursing esducator. Mcocst of this
time has been spent in the associate degree level, and
this fall I will kegin teaching in a baccalaureate
program. My experience has made me see the need for
continuing educatlion for registered nurses. A copy of
my biographical data form is attached to this written
testimony.

It is the feeling of the VWest

Virginia Nurses Asscciation that the fee for
reinstatement of a license from an inactive oxr lapsed
status may be tco small and should probably be
increased when other statutory changes which may be
regquired by the addition of continuing education are
prlaced into the code. The small amcunt of the
reinstatement fee would not encourage nurses to
complete their continuing education hours in the amcunt

of time allotted.
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We would also like the Board to make
clear how far back a licensee can be reguested to
produce information for an audit. We would suggest
that the audit request go back no more than the period
immediately pricr tc the Bcard's current reporting
period.

The provisions in the rule which
probably generated the most discussion in our study
groups was the section dealing with continuing
educaticn providers. We would first like to salute the
Board of Examliners for acknowledging that wvaluable
continuing education can be cbtained from sources other
than nursing, although we certainly endorse the fact
that a majority of a nurse's continuing education
courses should come from a nursing background.

Because of this we feel that while
continuing education courses offered by any of those
designated providers named mayv have a valuable
influence on nursing, they should not be given carte
blanche approval status. Many of the programs may not
have anything to do with a nurse's practice. And

noting their immediate provider status in the rule
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could cause some monumental judgment difficulties on
the part of the nurse and on the Board of Examiners,
notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.5 of the
rule.

For this reascn we would suggest that
Section 4.1 be rewritten as follows: The Board may
reccocgnize as approved providers an agency which meets
minimum provider standards in subparagraph 4.2 and 4.5

of this rule.

This would allow the Bcard some
leeway during its audit process and in Jjudging whether
or not the continuing education offerings were valid
for the practice of nursing.

We also believe the Board must
clearly delineate the difference between continuing
education and in-service. While in many cases it is a
function of how the material is presented and reported,
we do not want nurses who have attended in-service
courses coming in jecpardy of losing their licenses
when they discover that their institutions may not have
undertaken to meet continuing education reguirements,

even thecugh they would have been accredited as
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providers by the prcecvisicns in the rules. As one way
to prevent this we would suggest the Bcard regquire all
continuing educaticn activities tec ke approved before
they are offered.

Policing of providers is also a
concern. While the rule ncotes providers who fail to
meet the minimum acceptakle provider standards shall ke
notified in writing of specific deficiencies and given
a limited period of time tec correct the deficiencies,
the rule does noif state how this pelicing is to be done
and what criteria are tc be estaklished.

The amocunt cof paperwerk involved in
starting a centinuing education program is mind -
boggling. And we feel the Bcard may have
underestimated 1its rescurces in planning on policing
these organizations. We would alsc wonder Jjust
colloguially how amenable the West Virginia State
Medical Assoc¢iation or other health professional group
would be to a provider inspection by the West Virginia
Board of Examiners for Registered Professicnal Nurses.

A2s we stated earlier, we feel one of

the minimum standards for approved providers should be
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that all offerings must be approved prior to the
offering being given. We also suggest that 4.2.6 and
4,.2.7 be deleted and the following be substituted in
lieu therecf: The provider shall furnish a written
statement of completion to each participant who
completes each continuing education activity. The
statement shall ke signed by the instructor or an
individual designated by the instructor and shall
contain the folleowing information: the name of the
continuing education cffering, the number of contact
hours, and the date. Certificate of attendance lis
standard in continuing education circles, not
certification of successful completion.

Like my colleague, Joan Propst, let
me say again that the West Virginia Nurses Association
endorses continuing educztion for registered nurses and
is willing to work with the Board of Examiners to
perfect the rules to make them useful tococls in the
furtherance ¢f our prcfession,

Thank you.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Thank you.

The next person whoe 1s listed that
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she would like to speak iz Tammy Sarab.

MS. TAMMY SARAB: Hello. My name is Tamny
Sarab. I am licensed to practice in the State of West
Virginia. I alsec am a certified registered nurse

anesthetist.

And my concerns address the issue
that as an advanced practiticner I would like to make a
few comments akout that.

Dear Board of Examiners for
Registered Professiconal Nurses: I. am here to express
my concern about the proposed continuing education
reguirements for license renewal. I am a certified
registered nurse anesthetist. Our professicn supports
and reguires continuing education for renewal of our
CRNA status every two vears. The concern that we have
is about Section 4.5.2.

As this section stipulates certain
continuing education credit will not be accepted toward
completicon cof the reguired thirty CEUs to renew one's
registered nurse license. The one statement that has
me most concerned is the one that relates to job or

clinical practice.
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As I have stated earlier, our
professional organization and certifyving body, which is
the American Association of Nurse Anesthetists,
requires forty CEUs every twoe years. As a CRNA, I am
reguired by my employer %to maintain my CRNA status for
my employment. So in essence the forty CEUs that I am
reguired to maintain my CRNA status is part of my job
activities. And that is where the concern comes into
play.

I hope that you undersitand that
continuing education is very important to me
perscnally. And I recognize this by the action the
Board is taking by making this a reguirement for all
registered nurses and I also applaud this effort.

However, 1f, as a CRNA, I was nct
allowed to utilize the CEUs that I cbktained tThrough my
c¢linical practice and was reguired to additiconally
obtain thirty CEUs that could not be used toward this
reguirement, this would put me and other colleagues of
mine in a great difficult situation. I believe that it
was not the intent of the Board of Examiners to exclude

any relevant CEUs and I accept that.
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I alsoc believe that employers around
our State of West Virginia are trying to provide
opportunities for continuing education for bhecth RNs and
registered nurses that are in advance practice to help
meet reguirements through theilr accrediting
organizations, such as some regquirements that we have
that come thrcugh JCAH.

I ask the Bcard of Examiners to
consider this entire section and how it will affect RNs
and advanced practitioners that are already trying to
pursue the continuing education reguirement.

And cne preposal I have is that in
the appreciation that certain advance practitioners
already have a reguirement tec meet continuing educatiocon
units, teo receive those that you would consider
accepting the forty CEUs, for example, that I must have
through my professional organization, as completion of
the same CEUs that would be a requirement for RN
licensure.

The proocf of the CEUs cculd be easily
documented from our professional organization as, that

we have a current CRNA certification and active license
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status. And that in essence would help eliminate some

cf the duplicate paperwork that would go intec effect.

In other words, I am asking that as a CRNA that if we

would provide proof of our certification active status

to the Board, would that be considered proecf of meeting

the requirement for the basic RN licensure for the

State 0of West Virginia?
Thank you very much.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FATIRCHILD:
Would Ada Price like to
Ms. ADA PRICE: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD:
Harms like to speak?
MsS, ANN HARMS: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD:
Law like to speazak?
MR. JOHN LAW: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD:
MS. ANNE MATICS: No.
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD:
Caruthers?

MS. JANET CARUTHERS: No.

JANET T. SURFACE
COURT REPORTERS

é2 MUIRFIELD DRIVE
HURRICAME, WEST VIRGINIA 25525-%018
PHONE  (304) 737-0622

Thank you.

speak?

Would Ann

Would Jechn

Anne Matiecs?

Janet




27

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Patsy
Haslam?

MS. PATSY HASLAM: No.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: Weuld some

of those folks who deferred till later.like to speak

now?

A VCICE: My pocints were covered.

MS5. TWYLA WALLACE: I am Twyla Wallace, a
registered nurse in West Virginia. And I also

represent Concerned Nurses of West Virginia, which is
made up of licensed practical nurses and registered
nurses from all prograns.

I just want to say that in view of
some of the things that have happened recently with the
LPNs who last yvear was reguired to have continuing
educaticn and practice hours to keep their license, all
the fees were raised at that time, starting in '94,
from fifteen dollars to twenty-five dollars a year.

And it was said that with the reguirements of
continuing educaticn, contact hours, and practice
hours, and fees being ralised, that they felt that about

fifteen hundred of the seven thousand or so licensed
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practical nurses wculd nct be abkle to, would be lost
because they would nct ke akle tc keep up with these
regquirements. And that alsoc in crder to pay for
maintaining the continuing education that fees would be
raised abcocut five percent per year. and, as I said,
'94 was the first year that it was reguired that they

pay this. aAnd now they have, they are asking that the

fees go up to forty dollars a year. And sco this is
going tc be hard. They're probably going to lose more
LPNs.

Se in view of this, I Jjust wonder if
the Bcard of Registered Nurses shouldn't consider, if
we are also in the same boat, that our fee is being
raised, can we also expect it to go up again in order
to maintain continuing educaticn.

It might be wise maybe to wait until
the effect on LPNs is seen in maybe a ccocuple of years
or something like that. And alsc some states, such as
Colorade, recently in '¢4, have akandcned the
reguirement cf centinuing educaticn kecause of costs
and so on. Also Florida 1s having a hard time keeping

up with all the paperwork and so on that goes into it.
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So I just would like those comments to be considered
and think about it.

It might also be a consideration and
make more sense if employers reguired ceontinuing
educaticn to be empleyed in their facility and that it
would relate to the practice in which they were. Any
time you put a number, a magical number that you nust
reach to keep yvour license, the pecple go for that
number rather than content. And then it is difficult -
for the people to be evaluated. Whereas, 1f the
enployer required it, it would be related te their
practice and they could be evaluated as to¢ whether
indeed competency did improve.

I have alresady seen in the LPN
program among the LPN population that they are going
for that magical number. and even if you're in
gerontoleogy, you might go take pediatrics or critical
care or whatever, anvything to just reach that number.
So I just want that put in the record for your
consideration.

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHTLD: Thank you.

There were some other folks that
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wanted to speak and deferred until later. Would you
like to speak at this time?

(Pause.)

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: The flocor
will remain open for anyone who wishes to speak. So
just indicate to me when you would like to speak.

{WHEREUPON, the floor remained
open for comments until 12:00

nocn. )

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY FAIRCHILD: For the
record I would.like to close the public session for
proposed legislative rule 1% CSR 11, continuing
education. It is now twelve noon.

I have one additional written set of
comments from one of the participants to submit.

So at this time the public hearing is
closed, althcugh written comments may still be received

threugh four p.m. today.
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Janet T. Surface,
Stencmask Reporter, dc hereby certify that the
feregoing is, to the best c¢f my skill and ability, a
true and accurate transcript of the proceedings had in
the above-styled hearing on the 2%th day of July, 199%4.

Given under my hand this the 30th day

cf July, 1994.

Jasut T Busrjae

Repoﬁ%er
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Guly 29,0994

fo: Boand of Examinenas fon Regi&teaed ?nofe&aional Nunsen
From: Tammy L. Sanab, RN, B5N, CRHA

Re: Continuﬁng Education ?eguémement fon license Renewal

Dear Board,

-~

Thia letten ta written to express concean about the proposed
continuing education rnequinement {fonr license nenewel. I am
a Ceﬁtif&ed Registered Nunae Aneathetisat. Oun profession aupporia
arnd reguires continuing education for nenewal of ocun (RNA 4éatu4.
lhe concern {4 about asection 4.5.2 in the proposed legialation.

An 2thisa section Aﬁipulatea cerntain continuing education
crnedit will not be accepted towanrnd compleéion of the nagu&ned
30 (&Ua. The one atatement ﬁ%qtméqa_@gimOQé cqqceaned la the
one that nelates to job/clinical practice. HAa a CRNA [ am requined
by my employen to maintain a cunnent CRAA status: flany of the CEUs
that are necelved towand meeting the obligation come Through my
employern. Oun profesnional onganigation the Amenican Arscciation
of Nunse Anesthetist reguinea 40 CEU A eveny 2 yeanrs. l Ahope
you undenastand that continuing education is o very important aspect
of my employment, If [ waa not allowed to utilize C&Us obtained
through my clinicel practice, then the proposed additional as
30 CEla fon RN licernse nenewal would be difficult to complete and
maintaln,

[ believe it (s not the intent of the Boand of Examiners to exclude
any relavent education. Also [ believe that employens ane trying
to provide oppontunities fon continuing educaetion fon RNa to meet

regulation rnequlrnement faom accnedif&ng onganizationa.




[ aak the Boand of Examinerns to considen the entine section of
4.5.2 , and how thia will affect many Ra trying to alneady pursue
continuing education: HAlao [ a&é-fﬁé Boand of Examinens to conalden tAia
proposal: Since the CRNA must compieﬁe 40 Cida every 2 yeana, then
could these aame (&lUa fe accepﬁed fonr f&a naguLaemenf o{ the
continuing education fon RN License nenewa£¢ The pnoof of the 40 CEla
could be an eary aa documentation from the AANA of cunnent CRHA certification

and active atatua.

Reapectfuldy aubmitied,

’—_T<:;:&”*§%gqtﬁig<3~ <

Tammy L. Sarab, RN,BS5N,CRVA
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- Truy 28, 1994
TC:! Beoard of Examiners For RNs
FROM: Ramona Freshour
Administrative Assistant, Nursing
8t. Joseph's Hospital
RE: Series 11 Legislative Rule
Pertaining to Continuing Education
After careful reviewing of the proposed rule deating with continuing education, | have the following ccomments and/or
guestions: ; - - :
1) 18-11-3 Continuing Education

2.1.3 - Why can't the period of educational requirements maich the period
of licensure so that tracking could be resclved yearly as cpposed to every two years?

2) 18.11.4 Continuing Education Providers
4.1 - The Beard states it will accept educational programs offered by institutions
aceraedited by JCAHO, If WVNA is taken out of the credentialing picture, then
an RN must be present on the planning committee for the educational event. Why
do we need WVNA involved in programs if the Board accepts prograrns offered
by JCAHO accradited institutions?
if accredited by JCAHO - why do we have to meat minimum standards as outlined?
4,4 Self Study
4.4.3 - How are contact hours measured?

4.5.2 Unacceptable Continuing Education
4.8.2.|-4.5.2.4 -\Why can't educational opportunities required by JCAHO for
reaccreditiation (i.e., Universal Precautions, CPR, Safety, efc.) be given some
credit instead of nothing at all? 2

| appreciate your consideration of the above comments.

Thank you. -

0oc83s - - LTl == Lo

1824 Murdech Ave., PO. Box 327, Parkersburg, WV 26102-0327 1-304-424-4111 N V| l A

_ Partner~VHA Mid-Atlantic
Affiliate of the Voluntary
Hospitals of America Systarn.
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For the record, my name is Paula Staud. I am a registered nurse, licensed to practice in the State
of West Virginia. I have five years of experience as director of nursing in an acute care, 100-bed hospital
and 13 years experience as a nursing educator. Most of this time has been spent teaching at the associate
degree level, but this fall, I begin teaching in a baccalaureate program, My experience has made me see
the need for continuing education for registered nurses. A copy of my biographical data form is attached
with my written testimony.

It is the feeling of the West Virginia Nurses Association that the fee for reinstatement of a license
from an inactive or lapsed status may be too small and should probably be increased when other statutory
changes which may be required by the addition of continuing education are placed into the code. The
small amount of the reinstatement fee would not encourage nurses to complete their continuing education
hours in the amount of time allotted.

We would also like the board to make clear how far back a licensee can be requested to produce
information for an audit. We would suggest that the audit request go back no more than the period
immediately prior to the board's current reporting period.

The provisions in the rule which probably generated the most discussion in our study groups was
the section dealing with Continuing Education Providers. We would first like to salute the Board of
Examiners for acknowledging that vatuable continuing education can be obtained from sources other than
nursing, although we certainly endorse the fact that a majority of a nurse's continuing education courses
should come from a nursing background.

Because of this, we feel that while continuing education courses offered by any of those
designated providers named may have a valuable influence on nursing, they should not be given carte
blanche approval status. Many of the programs may not have anything to do with a nurses practice and
noting their immediate provider status in the rule could cause some monumental judgment difficulties on
the part of the registered nurse and on the part of the Board of Examiners, notwithstanding the provisions
of Section 4.5 of the rule,

For this reason, we would suggest that section 4.1 be rewritten as follows: "The board may

recognize as approved providers an agency which meets minimum provider standards in subparagraph
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4.2 and 4.5 of this rule..." This would allow the board some leeway during its audit process and in judging
whether or not the continuing education offerings were valid for the practice of nursing.

We also believe the board must clearly delineate the difference between continuing education and
mservice. While in many cases it is a function of how the material is presented and reported, we do not
want nurses who may have attended inservice courses coming in jeopardy of losing their licenses when
they discover that while their institutions may not have undertaken to meet continuing education
requirements, even though they would have been accredited as providers by the provisions in the rules,
As one way to prevent this, we would suggest the board require all continuing education activities {0
be approved before they are offered.

Policing of providers is also a concern. While the rule notes, 'Providers who fail to meet the
minimum acceptable provider standards shall be notified, in writing, of specific deficiencies and given a
limited period of time to correct the deficiencies," the rule does not state how this policing is to be done
and what criteria are to be established.

The amount of paperwork involved in starting a continuing education program is mind-boggling,
and we feet the board may have underestimated its resources in planning on policing these organizations.
We would also wonder, just colloquially, how amenable the West Virginia State Medical Association or
other health professional group would be io a provider inspection by the West Virginia Board of
Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses!

As we stated eariier, we feel one of the minimum standards for approved providers should be that
all offerings must be approved prior to the offering being given. We also suggest that 4.2.6 and 4.2.7 be
deleted and the following be substituted in lieu thereof: "The provider shall furnish a written statement
of completion to each participant who completes each continuing education activity. The statement shall
be signed by the instructor or an individual designated by the instructor and shall contain the following
information: the name of the continuing education offering, the number of contact hours and the date.”
Certification of attendance is standard in continuing education circles, not certification of successful
completion.

Like my colleague, Joan Propst, let me say again that the West Virginia Nurses Association
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endorses continuing education for registered nurses and is willing to work with the Board of Examiners

to perfect the rules to make them useful tools in the furtherance of our profession.
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AMERICAN NURSES CREDENTIALING CENTER
COMMISSION ON ACCREDITATION
BIOGRAPHICAL DATA FORM

NAME: Paula Staud, RN, MSN

HOME ADDRESS: 131 Elm Street
Elkins, WV 26241

BUSINESS ADDRESS: Davis and Elkins College
Nursing Department
College Avennue
Elkins, WV 26241

TELEPHONE: {304) 636-7540 H {304} 636-1900 W

PRESENT POSITION (TITLE AND DESCRIPTION]):

Assigstant Professor of Nursing. Teach primarily Med-Surg
Nursing in an Associate Degree Program.

EDUCATION (INCLUDE BASIC PREPARATION THROUGH HIGHEST DEGREE

HELD):
DEGREE INSTITUTION MAJOR AREA YEAR
name OF STUDY
1. BSN WV University Nursing 1968
2. MSN WV University Nursing 1985

Use the space below to briefly describe your professional experience or areas
of expertise (including publications) which contribute to your particular
involvement with the organization seeking accreditation.

5 years experience as Director of Nursing in an acute care, 100-bed hospital.
13 years experience as Nursing educator - mostly spent in ADN level - but some
experience with ADN. Clinical areas of expertise;: Medical-Surgical Nursing,
management, critical care.
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Let me state for the record that my name is Joan Propost. I am a registered nurse, licensed to
practice in the State of West Virginia. | have five years of experience working with the process of
continuing education in nursing and six years of teaching experience in a baccalaureate degree program
in nursing. I am qualified by education and experience to discuss continuing education for registered
nurses. A biographical data form is attached with my written testimony and labeled as Exhibit 1. The
testimony which I and my colleague Pzula Stuad provide today is given on behalf of the West Virginia
Nurses Association, The West Virginia Nurses Association is the largest single professional organization
for registered nurses in the State of West Virginia.

The West Virginia Nurses Assoctation recognizes health care as a fundamental right and nursing
care as a major component of health care. The nature of nursing is reflected in deliberate human action
designed to assist people throughout the life span with health-related activities. Inherent in nursing are
specialized knowledge and abilities which are attained through formal education and are reflective of the
changing needs of society. For nurses in a rapidly changing society, maintenance of nursing competence
demands constant effort in order to promote and improve the health care of clients.

The participation in continuing education activities provides one means by which nurses may
enhance competence and maintain the standards of nursing practice. One means of ensuring the
advancement of the discipline of nursing is through continuing education. To assure the public that
continuing education activities meet established educational standards, a peer review process was
developed by the West Virginia Nurses Association. WVNA believes that a varety of persons and
groups share the responsibility for contributing to the quality of services through continuing education
in nursing. These persons and groups are; the individual nurse, the employer, the sponsor of continuing
education and the West Virginia Nurses Association.

On behalf of the West Virginia Nurses Association, I would like to salute the Board of Exarttiners
for Registered Professional Nurses for proposing these rules. We will they be beneficial to nursing in
West Virginia, and we would like to offer our comments in the spirit of cooperation.

‘The process we undertook to formulate this testimony was two-fold. Copies of the proposed rule

were reviewed by nurses in a self-study group atmosphere on at least two separate occasions. Those
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comments have been synthesized into this téétimony.

In undertaking the formulation of any new rule, a definition of terms is of paramount importance.
For that reason, we suggest you conform the terms you use in the rule as much as possible with those
propounded by the American Nurses Credentialing Center. While the ANCC is not the only nationaliy
recognized credentialing body for registered nurses, it is certainly the largest and most well-known. Also,
many nurses in advanced practice keep and maintain their certification through ANCC programs, so it
would be beneficial for all involved if there existed some continuity with regard to program definition.
With my written testimony, we are providing a glossary used by the ANCC and drawn from the American
Nurses Association's Standards for Continuing Education in Nursing. The glossary is labeled as Exhibit
2.

We also feel that early on, we should address the question of the approved provider. Something
we do not find discussed in the rules is the status of the providers approved by the West Virginia Nurses
Association. This gets heavily into "continuing education nomenclature," so please bear with me.

The West Virginia Nurses Association is approved by the American Nurses Credentialing Center,
a branch of the American Nurses Association, to participate in the continuing education process in two
fashions. L .

The first is to provide continuing education. Many of you may be familiar with this from
attending annual conventions. The continuing education contact hours nurses receive there are provided
by the West Virginia Nurses Association under its approved provider status from the American Nurses
Credentialing Center.

The second way WVNA participates in the continuing education process is through the approval
of continuing education activities from sources outside WVNA. I believe even the Board of Examiners
has had an offering approved. WVNA also approves entities to be providers of continuing education.

For instance, Wheeling Hospital, the home hospital of the board chair, is a provider of continuing
education. Every two years its continuing education department submits to the Virginia Nurses
Association an application for provider status.

A peer review team of registered nurses reviews the application, and, if it meets the guidelines
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established by the American Nurses Cr&dentiaﬁng Center, grants the entir} provider status. With provider
status, the entity can offer whatever continuing education activities it chooses and, and the end of each
calendar year, makes a report on WVNA on the offerings it has provided.

The purpose of this rather lengthy explanation is to form a two-fold question.

01. Will participants in single offerings, which have been approved by the West Virginia
Nurses Association, be able to count contact hours towards relicensure?

Notice, these offerings have been gpproved by the WVNA, they are not being offered by the
WVNA. Ifnot, would the organization seeking approval for the offering also have to get approval from
the Nursing Board as a provider? _

02. Would the continuing education offerings provided by approved WVNA providers, such
as Wheeling Hospital , be eligible for use for relicensure without the approﬂred providers
also applying to the West Virginia Board of Examiners for Registered Professional
Nursing for provider status?

It would seem a great duplication of work to force providers to seek dual approval, particuiarly
in light of the fact that WVNA has a rigorous approval process which has just received national
recognition .The West Virginia Board of Examiners for licensed Practical Nurses has held that an
approved provider with the West Virginia Nurses Association does not need to seek provider status
from the LPN Board. If that is your goal, and we hope it is, we would suggest that specific language be
included in the rule.

For purposes of the rule, a workable definition may be: "An Accredited approver is an eligible
organization credentialed by the American Nurses Credentialing Center or other nationally recognized
credentialing organization recognized by the West Virginia Board of Examiners for Registered
Professional Nurses which has submitted to an in-depth analysis to determine its capacity to approve
quality continuing education over an extended period of time."

An added be benefit of adopting this definition would be that it would automatically provide for
the board a vehicle to evaluate continuing education offerings done outside of the state of West Virginia

and provided by a provider approved by another entity accredited by the American Nurses Credentialing
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Center,

In line with this, we would like to suggest the Board revise the rule to make clear that continuing
education hours used by nurses in advanced practice to maintain their certification also be acceptable for
relicensure.

We would suggest you delegate 2.5 and 2.6, the definitions of "formal offering” and "informal
offering” and rather formulate a definition of continuing education (2.3) such as: "Continuing education
is those leaming activities intended te build upon the educational ane experiential bases of the
professional nurse for the enhancement of practice, education, administration, research, or theory
development to the end of improving the health of the public. College credit courses offered by a
recognized educational institution may be approved as continuing education."

We would suggest 2.7, independent study, and 2.8, self-study, be deleted and the following
inseried in lieu thereof: "Independent study means a self-paced learning activity developed for individual
use which may be offered (provider-directed) or self-prescribed (self-directed.)

We would suggest that 3.1.1.a. and 3.1.1.b. be deleted and that the following definition be
included by contact hour: "A contact hour is 2 unit of measurement that describes 50 minutes of an
approved, organized learning experience, either didactic or clinical experience.

From the standpoint of successful administration of a program, we question the wisdom of a one-
year relicensure period and a two-year contimuing education period. If the relicensure period is going to
remain an annual one, we suggest an annual continuing education period.

If the board plans on going to a two-year relicensure period, which is probably a wise move, then
we understand the two-year continuing education system. To make things simpler, it would seem wiser
dunng the one-year phase-in peried to have the continuing education requirement at 15 hours instead of

o

12 hours, as the rule states.

Both the study groups that reviewed these proposed rules saw a problem with the dates noted
in 3.1.3. Since we now get our license renewal applications sometime in October for renewal by January,
we would be effectively prevented from using continuing education credits earned in November and

December to renew our licenses. That could also become problematic for the board, because the board
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could not justly deny someone their license if they were taking continuing education classes after license

applications were issued. We urge you to review these dates and make the reporting dates convenient

for both the licensees and the board.

At this time, I will conclude my testimony, Paula Staud will present the remainder of our
concerns. Again, please let me stress that the West Virginia Nurses Association supports continuing

education for nurses and applauds the board for its actions.
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EXHISIT 1

AMERICAN NURSES CREDENTIALING CENTER
COMMISSION ON ACCREDITATION
BIOGRAPHICAL DATA FORM

NAME: Joan Propst, E4.D., RN-CS

HOME ADDRESS: 2 Ratcliffe Lane
Philippi, WV 264186

BUSINESS ADDRESS: West Virginia University Hospitals
P.O. Box 8225 Medical Center Drive
Morgantown. WV __26508-8225

TELEPHONE: _({304) 457-4742

PRESENT POSITION (TITLE AND DESCRIPTION):
Director, Nursing Staff Development. Responsible for
the assessment, development, coordination. deliverv, and
evaluation of the continuing education needs of nursing
staff. - _

EDUCATION {INCLUDE BASIC PREPARATION THROUGH HIGHEST DEGREE

HELD):
DEGREE INSTITUTION MAJOR AREA YEAR
name OF STUDY
1. B.S. Alderson - Broaddus College  Nursing 18979
2. M.S.N. WV University Nursing 1985
3. E4d.D. WV University Educ. Admin. 1993

Use the space below to briefly describe your professional experience or areas
of expertise (including publications) which contribute to your particular
involvement with the organization seeking accreditation.

Five years of experience working with the process of continuing education in
nursing. Six years of teaching experience in a baccalaureate degree program in
nursing. Educationally and experiencially prepared in the area of professional
continuing education. o -
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GLOSSARY - e

This glossary is drawn from the glossary in the American Nurses Association’s Standards for
Conrinuing Education in Nursing. The selected definitions are frequently used in the context
of accreditation and may in some cases require further elaboration in order to carry out the
accreditation process. The definitions from the standards are in ordinary type; operational
elaboration or, if necessary, definition by the ANCC Commission on Accreditation is in the
type printed in italics.

Accreditation A voluntary process for appraising and granting recognition to a provider or
eligible approval body that meets established standards based on predetermined criteria. For
purposes of the accreditarion system, this is inzerpreted to mean a voluntary process in which
an institution, organization, or agency submits to an in-depth analysis to determine iis
capacity to provide or approve quality continuing education over an extended period of time.,

Accredited Approver For purposes of the accreditation system, an eligible organization’
credentialed by ANCC gfter having submitted to an in-depth analysis to determine its capaciry
to approve quality continuing educarion over an extended period of time.

Accredited Provider For purposes of the accreditation system, an eligible organization
credenzialed by ANCC after having submitted to an in-depth analym to determine its capacity
to provide quality ¢ontinuing education over an extended period of time.

Adult Learning Principles Approaches to adults as learners based on recognition of the
individual’s autonomy and self-direction, life experiences, readiness to learn, and problem-
orientation to leamning. Approaches include mutual, respectful collaboration of teachers and
learners in planning, diagnosing needs, formulating objectives, designing sequences, and
evaluating learning. Learning activities tend to be experiential and inquiry focused.

Appeal For purposes of the accreditation system, a process that allows the applicant to
obtain a redetermination by an appellate body with regard to an adverse decision made by an
original decision-making body.

Approval (Continuing Education) A voluntary process for appraising and granting
recognition of a provider or a program that meets established standards based on
predetermined criteria. For purposes of the accreditarion system, a decision made by an
accredited approver that the criteria for approval of continuing educarion have been met.

Approval Unit For purposes of the accreditarion system, the administrative body responsible
Jor coordinating all aspects of the continuing education approval process.

"—
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Behavioral Objective An intended outcome of instructions stated as a specific behavior of
the learner that can be measured by performance.

Constituency For purposes of the accreditation system, providers that an accredited federal
nursing service or specialty nursing organization identifies as being eligible to submiz
conzinuing educarion activities to its approval body. Constituency must be identified ar the
time of application for accreditation.

Contact Hour A unit of measurement that describes 50 minutes of an approved, organized
learning experience, either didactic or clinical practice. For purposes of the accreditarion
System, contact hours also may be awarded for offerings organized as independen: study.

Content Subject matter of or definitive information about an educational activity which
relates to the behavioral objectives.

Continuing Education Those learning activities intended to build upon the educational and
experiential bases of the professional nurse for the enhancement of practice, education,
administration, research, or theory development to the end of improving the heaith of the

public,

Continuing Education Unit (CEU) Ten contact hours of participation in an organized
continuing education experience that meets the criteria published by the national Council on
the Continuing Education Unit, including responsible sponsorship, capable direction, and
qualified instruction.
Coprovide For purposes of the accreditation system, the process for planning, developing,
and implemnenting an educational activity by two or more providers.

Criteria Indicators by which standards may be measured and evaluated.

Curriculum Vitae For purposes of the accreditation system, a succinct resume which
specifies educarion and professional qualifications,

Deferral For purposes of the accreditation System, a decision made to delay acrion on an
application.

Denial For purposes of the accreditation system, a decision made by the appropriare body to

disapprove the application.

Director Individual responsible for bringing together and managing elements needed for a
continuing education provider unit or program; coordinator.
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Educational Design A plan for instruction consisting of 2 minimum of a documented
assessment of learning needs, behavioral objectives, content outline, teaching methods,
learning experiences, resource utilization plan, and evaluation strategies.

Evaluation A systematic process by which a judgment is made about consequences, results,
effects, or merit of a continuing education provider unit or continuing education program in
order to make subsequent decisions. For purposes of the accreditation system, evaluation is a
systermnatic assessmen: of administration, program and learning outcomes.

Federal Nursing Service For purposes of the accreditation system, a governmental or quasi-
govermmental entity that is national in scope and provides nursing services, e.g. Army Nurse
Corps.

Goa! Broadly stated objective. For purposes of the accreditarion ‘
System, this is further defined as ¢ statement of broad direction or general intent.

Guidelines For purposes of the accreditation sysiem, statements jfor direction in
implemenzing criteria and policies.

Independent Study For purposes of the accreditation system, a self-paced learning activity
developed for individual use which may be institutionally offered (prowder-dzrec:ed) or self-
prescribed (self-directed).

Inservice Education Activities intended to assist the professional nurse to acquire, maintain,
and/or increase competence in fulfilling the assigned responsibilities specific to the
expectations of the employer.

Interdisciplinary Continuing Education Planned, organized learning experiences designed
for a target audience of members of two or more separate but interrelated professions.

Monitor For purposes of the accreditation system, a periodic assessment to determine
continuing compliance with the criteria.

Need (Educational) Knowledge, skills, or attiuiﬁes that are absent but necessary to attain
more desirable conditions and are capable of being satisfied by learning experiences.

Needs Assessment Process by which a discrepancy between what is desired and what exists
is identified.

Offering For purposes of the accreditation system, an offering is a single educational
activity that may be presented once or repeated.
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Orientation The means by which new staff are introduced to the philosophy, goals,
policies, procedures, role expectations, physical facilities, and special services in a specific
work setting. Orientation is provided at the time of employment and at other times when
changes in roles and responsibilities occur in a specific work setting.

Philosophy A statement of beliefs.

Planning Committee For purposes of the accreditation system, a group of knowledgeable
persons, including potential participants or represenzaiives of target audience, brought
together for the purposes of planning an educational activity.

Program A planned, organized effort directed toward accomplishing educational objectives;
in continuing education, an individual offering or group of offerings; in nursing education, a
planned, organized effort leading to an academic degree. For purposes of the accreditation
system, a program is a series of offerings/educarional sessions with a common theme and
common overall goals. Antendees may be allowed to choose among several
individual/concurrent educational session. An example of a program might be a conference
or course (with mulriple sessions). ‘

Provider An individual, institution, organization, or agency responsible for the
development, implementation, evaluation, financing, record keeping, and maintenance of a2
quality assurance mechanism for a continuing education offering, program or a total
continuing education curriculum; sponsor.

Provider Unit The administrative body responsible for coordinating all aspects of the
nursing continuing education activities sponsored by a provider.

Purpose A statement describing why and for whom an educational program has been
designed.

Quality Assurance An internal process to ensure the excellence of continuing education
activities. The process includes measurement of the degree to which intents or goals are met,
and the introduction of changes based on information supplied by the measurement with the
view toward improvement of the total continuing education effort.

Reconsideration For purposes of the accreditation system, a process thar allows the
applican: to obtain reconsideration of an adverse decision on an application for accreditation
or approval by submission of clarifying materials to the original decision-making body.

Resources Individuals, materials, space, and funds needed to implement an educational
program.
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Resubmission For purposes of accreditation, a process which provides for review and action
on applications which have been previously submitted and withdrawn prior to committee
action. ’ T

Revoke For purposes of the accreditation system, to rescind approved/
accredited status. '

Site Visit For purposes of the accreditation system, on-location review ‘of an applicant to
verify, clarify, and amplify documentation of a wrinten application and thus to establish the
applicant’s capacity to meet the criteria.

Specialty Nursing Organization For purposes of the accreditation system, @ national nursing
body that has a majority of voting members who are registered nurses that practice in
specialized nursing area, as so defined in the organization’s scope of practice staternent. The
organization has in place bylaws that identify as a purpose and function the improvement of
health care and the advancement of nursing.

Sponsor See Provider. .

Staff Development A process consisting of orieatation, inservice education, and continuing
education for the purpose of promoting the development of personnel within any employment
setting, consistent with the goals and responsibilities of the employer.

Standard A norm that expresses an agreed-upon level of excellence that has been developed
to characterize, to lead to criteria for measurement, and to provide guidance in achieving
excellence in education.

Target Audience Group for which a learning experience has been designed.

Teaching Methods A system of instructional procedures based upon educational principles.
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July 12, 1994

Board of Examiners for Registered Professionzl Nurses
101 Dee Drive
Charleston, WV 23311-1620

Dear Board of Examiners:

This letter is written to voice our concerns and opinioas regarding a part of the proposed Series
11 Legislative Rule pertaining to Continuing Education.

Proposed: 3.2 Exceptions to Continuing Education Requirements.

#2 "A licensee who resides outside of West Virginia and who holds a current
active license to practice in a state other than West Virginia which also has
mandatory continuing education is exempt from the continving education
requirements set forth in this rule.”

In response to the above proposal:

There are those nurses who reside in West Virginia and also hold licenses to
practice in other states and have met the requirements for continuing education in
those states. Why would they not be exempt such as those nurses who do not live
in West Virginia? They have all met the same requirements.

Please accept this letter in lieu of our attendance at the public hearing on July 29, 1994,

Thank you.

Sincerely,

JQ’MM Gl aalod F OS] G2
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July 7, 1994

Janet Fairchild e A

West Virginia Board of Examiners ] . "7
For Regilistered Professional Nurses

1017 Dee Drive

Charleston, WV 252311-1620

Dear Janet,
I am writing you in response te receiving the R.N. Newsglstier

of puklic hearings for Series 2 Legislative Rule and Series

11 Legislative Rule.. I am presently living and working in

FPlorida and still retazin my West Virginia nursing license (the

state of originsl licensure). Unfortunately I can not come

to the puklic hearing and would like my wviews known. Working

in Florida I am reguif@d to have 24 continuing education units

every two years at time of renewal., T think 30 hours is too o
many hours to obtain and that one hour per month is adeguate. = - .
Al1sc Flerida use to ask the providor and then the nurse to send

in proof of completed classes and this provided additiecnal

paperwork and record keeping. At lesast for the past four

vears,the state of Florida regquires the nurse to keep records

of 24 hours c¢f continuing education every two yvears and be able

to prove that the heurs were obtained only if the nurse were

cf those who are randomly audited at time of license renewal.

I like this and think the West Virginia Board should consider

this to keep down costs and record keeping. I d¢ agree that

nurses should have and be reguired to have continuing education.

The courses that I attended increased my knowledge and skills

in nursing. I am also just completing my bachelor degree in

nursing and reallze what 2 gocd nursing education I raceived

in West Virginia at Parkersburg Community Ceollege which is now
Parkersburg branch of West Virginia University. Enclosed is

my copy ©of Fleorida Beoard of Nursing Nursing Record with areas

for renewal 2hd continuing education holUrs highlighted that

may be helpful in exFlaining my thoughts and what is reguired

by Florida that merits review by West Virginia. Thank you for

netifying me of the public hearing.

Sinc

ly,
“‘W.. SlA ' - - 7 =

720 8 Lomins Jo K vd T F3
Sfl’%‘..’ﬂﬁ/f’{&'—- 39{&9}2’
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Recorp

DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL REGULATION NEWSLETTER
FOR NURSES LICENSED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA

VOL. 8, NO. 2, WINTER 1882

Avoiding discipline as you renew your nursing license

By Betry Ann Taylor, RN, MSN, CNA
Chairman, Florida Board of Nursing
It may seem hard to believe, but license renewal forms will
soon be mailed to nurses throughout Florida. As vou get ready to
turn your calendars to 1963, the Department
of Professional Regulation (DPR) is prepar-

ing your licensure renewat form, Over the
next two years nurses will find themselves
being disciplined by the Board because they
didn’t manage the renewal process properly.
How can you avoid discipline while renew-
ing your nursing license? Here are some
suggestions that may help you.

Be sure that DPR has your cur-
rent address on file. Your renewal no-
tice will be mailed to vour last known ad-
dress. If you have moved and the post office
is no longer forwarding your mail, your renewal notice will be re-
turned 1o Tallahassee, The Beard of Nursing does not maintain
an employment file of nurses and cannot assist ia redirecting your
renewal notice 0 you. Your license will not be renewed until
you contact DPR to inguire about vour license renewal and pro-
vide them with a current mailing address. If you continue to
work after your license’s expiration date, vou will be in violation
of the Nurse Practice Act (F.S. 464). If you fail to keep DPR ap-
prised of your current address, you will be in violation of a Board
of Nursing rule,

Betty Arnn Taylor

o

Make every effort to complete your continuing
education (CE) requirements as early as possible.

While you have until the expiration date of your current li-
¢ense to obtain the requisite contact hours, you cannot properly
renew your license until all hours have been eamed. While your
intentions may be to eam the contact hours before your license's
expiration date, you cannot be assured that you will. Canceled
courses, personal and family illness and transportation problems
may prevent you from actually completing the CE criteria. I you
have not earned the coniact hours and proceed to renew vou li-
cense, you will be falsifying the renewal documents and there-
fore, will be in viclation of the Nurse Practice Act.  During every
renewal cycle, nurses are disciplined for having signed the re-
newal forms before meeting the CE requirements,

Know your CE requirements. If you cannot prove
that you have met them, you may be in violation of the Nurse
. Practice Act for falsifying records and/or renewing your license
through misrepresentations.

If you held an active Florida nursing license during the entire
i current biennium (beginning April 1, 1991), you need 24 hours of
continving education. If you received your license by endorse-
ment during the biennium, you need one hour of CE for each
month you possessed your Florida license. The Board has the au-
thority ¢ fine nurses up to S100 and to suspend their license for
! one month for each hour of incorrectly reported continuing edu-

Sez Chairman ‘s Message, page 3

i g e —m o — . -

: The Board

! wishes to express
| heartfelt apprecia-
tion to the many,
many nurses who
i participated in the
1 effort 1o assist the’
victims of the
devastation caused by Hurricane Andrew in South Florida.
Andrew made landfall gn Monday, Aung. 24, 1892, and

| wreaked havoc not only on the community and the lives and
homes of its residents, but also on the health sysiem through-

Many thanks to all who helped after Hurricane Andrew |

out Dade, Broward, and Monroe Counties,

To assist in coping with the seemingly endless demands
that were placed on the private and pubiic health care delivery
systems, the Governor promulgated an Executive Order on
Aug. 28th to provide relisf. The outpouring of help was in-
credible,

Great courage and human kindness were displayed by the
hundreds of volunizer nurses and others whose actions went
far above and beyond the call of duty. Their dedication, com-
mitment, and unselfish service to others reflects credit upon
the enlire profession. Bravo. Well done and thank you o
cach and every one of you! ]

S




- Carol J. Mollohan, RN, CS, MPH
- . 1542 Mt. Vernon Rd.
Charleston, WV 25314

-

TO: West Virginia Board of Examiners
for Registered Professional Nurses

DATE: July 11, 1994

RE: Series 11 Legislative Rule

I have the following questions concerning continuing education:

How does the process already in place with WVNA/ANA for approval
of continuing education offerings fit into the rule?

In the past, I have been approved by WVNA to provide a particular
continuing education offering as an individual. I would hope that
individual approval could continue. Institutions are not always
willing to offer a topic outside their particular interests. If
institutions offer a topic, overhead charges increase the cost.

What provisions will there be for accepting continuing education
approved by another professional group, e.g., social workers,
educators, or counselors, or by an out of state institution?

The American Nurses Credentialing Center has authorized my use of
such continuing education to meet ongoing certification requirements
because content for my specialty, community health nursing with
emphasis on parent-child interaction and child development, is often
not offered as nursing continuing education.

Please raise these issues in the hearing and respond to myv questions

after the hearing. Thank you for this opportunity to have input into
the rules governing our profession.

. Coprredel




AMERICAN ACADEMY OQF FAMILY PHYSICIANS (ARATFP) headguartered 1in
KRansas City, Missourl, 1s a professiocnal organizatien founded in
1547 as the American Academy of General Practice. The name was
changed=in 1971 since Famlly Practice had become a medical
specialty with resgidency training preograms in February 1969. As
of 1985 to.be eligible for membership in the AAFP, a physician
must be a graduate of an ACGME approved Family Practice Residency
programn, _ .
Since 1947 the AAFP has regquired its members to complete 150
hours of approved Continuing Medical Education every three years
t0 be recertified for membership. It is the only medical
speclalty organizatican to reguire CME completion to retain
membership.

At least 75 of the required 150 hours must be RAAFP Prescribed
credit, which means the course has been reviewed by the national
LAFP CME Committee and meets the reguired standards. 75 hours
can be from elective credit that does not have to be aop*oved by
the AAFP or have family practice input.

Only 25 CME hours must be from group learning activities, a
conference at a §ite ‘with other physicians, 1i.e. the WV 2aAF
Family Practice Weekend & Sports Medicine Conference or the April
Annual Scientific Assembly.

v

Those residents graduating in July 1894 will not have to be
recertified for membership and have the reguired 130 hours until
December 31, 1887. ) ’

AMERICAN BOARD OF FAMILY PRACTICE - (ABFP) leccated irn Lexington,

KEPLuCkY, is a sepa“ate and autonomous body which acts as the

certifying agency for the spec;alty of FTamily Practice and works

with other groups teo contribute to the educaticn process of

family physiciens. A1l candidates ZIfor the ABIFP examinatlion must

dave comnle»ed 36 calendar months 1n an ACGME accredited Family
ractlce residency progranm.

If the candidate passes the exam and 1s Board Certified in Family
Practice, he/she must be recertified after six years (physicians
are allcwed a one year grace period to be reexamined 1f they do
nct pass the exam the sixth year, but cannot go over seven
vears). In addizion, they cannot sit for the exam 1f they cannct |
document 300 hours of approved CME in the past six years. AAFP
active membership for the past six years serves as documentation
since members must coleete 1530 hours every three years.

WEST VIRGINIZ BOARD OF MEDICINE - is a regulatery Boeoard that
grants & license to physiclans to practice medicine in the state
and can revcoke or suspend the license. Physicians must Dbe re-
licensed every two vears. In 1991 the WV State Legislature passed
a law that now reguires completicon ¢of 5C hours.cf CMZI every two
vears for re-licensure. If audited by the Beoard of Medicine, a
physician is reduired to produce proof of attendance of CME
hours. WY AAFP can assist with proving these CME hours.




Reprint 101

CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS FOR MEMBERS

American Acadery of Family Physicians’ members. should inform sponsors and producers of Continuing Medical Educarion (CME)}
programs, e.g., hospirals, medical scrools and other erganizations, of the Acadery's CME requirements. If such organizations wish
to have their courses and programs reviewed for approval by the Acadeny, they must follow the criteria, definition and rules of ihe
Accdenty as defired in "Requiremeris for Eligibility of CME Courses and Programs for AAFP Approval® (Instruction Sheet for Reprin:
1G2). For review for approval of Enduring Marerials, see definitions and procedures offered in *Informetion and Rules Regarding

Approval of Enduring Materials® (Tnstruction Sheer for Reprine 103).

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

1. To be eligible for reelsction to membership each AAFP
Active member must complete 150 hours of approved
continuing medical education (CME) every three years, of
which A MINIMUM OF 75 MUST BE PRESCRIBED
CREDIT; each Affiliate member must complete 50 hours of
CME per year, of which A MINIMUN OF 25 MUST RE
PRESCRIBED,

2. A minimum of 25 of the required 150 hours must be
obtained from group learing activities,

3. Each constituent (state) chapter shall have the option of
requiring its members to obtain a portion of their CME cradit
from that chapter’s produced or approved programs. In such
case, no mere than 25 hours may be required from these
programs, which must be identified zppropriately by the
chapter.

4, It shall be the responsibility of each individual member to
report hours of CME activity appropriately oo such fortos as
may be required by the AAFP or the constituent chapter.

5. CME credits for Academy members may be obtzined from
the following sources:  (Sources A through J are for
Prescribed credit hours which require that the program is
intended primarily for physicians, has family practice input by
an AAFP member, and bas prior approval from the AAFP
Commission on Coatinuing Medical Education. Sources K
through N are for Elective credit hours which do not require
family practice input. Sources O and P outline alternative
processes for obtaining CME credit.)

SOURCES FOR PRESCRIBED CREDIT

A, Natjonal Acadcr&; or constituent chapter produced or
cospansored programs approved by the AAFP Comunission on
Continuing Medical Education,

B. Medica! schidol producsd, or cospousared CME programs
with the department or division of family practics in that
school, or in cooperation with the constituent chapter of the
AAFP, and approved by the AAFP Commissicn og
Continuing Medica! Education. '

C. Seminars and other CME programs designed for Academy
members, planned and produced in cooperation with family
practice residency programs, aad approved by the AAFP
Commissicn ca Continuing Medical Educaticn.

D. Fonmnal scieatific mestings or programs offersd by
hospitals, and approved by the AAFP Commission on
Coztinuing Medical Education.

E. Individually planned training in a teaching hospital, Credit
to be individually detsrmined by the AAFP Commissicn on
Continuing Medical Educaticn. Limit ¢f 50 hours per week,
with a maximum of 150 hours per year,’

¥, Mini-residency/fellowship programs designad for prac-
ticing physicians, and approved by the AAFP Commission on
Continuing Medical Education. Limit of SO hours per week,
with a maximum of 150 hours per year,

G. Enduring materials with formal family practica_:;;]aming
input by an AAFP member, iccluding courses in American
Family Physician; other pational Academy or coastituent

«chapter produced self-assessment home study; individual study

or audiovisual coursss; medical school correspondence
courses, and otker audiovistal programs of an enduring
nature, and approved by the AAFP Commission on Continuing
Medical Education. Hour-for-hour credit 1o be allowed as
specified upon completion of each course or medule.

H. Other formalized sciectiic CME, including special
programs in stafes without medical schools, and approved by
the AAFP Commission on Coatinuing Medical Educaticn.




I. Teaching medical studeats, residents, physicians, physician
assistant studeqts, of nurse practitioner students. Limir of 20
hours per year, with a maximum of 60 hours per :nree-year
period. - - o

J. Publicaticn iz a state or national "refereed” jourmal of
original sclentific or sociosconomic research pertaining to
patieat care, public or commuxity health. Limit of 15 Aours
per paper, with a maximum of 45 hours per three-year period.

SCURCES FOR ELECTIVE CREDIT

K. Presentation or publication of an original scieatific or
socioeconomic paper pertaining fo medical cars at the naticnal
Academy, constituent chapter or other medical society level.
(A member applying for credit uzder this provisioo will
submit a copy of the presentation or publication to the
appropriate committee of the constituent chapter.) Limit of 10
Rours per paper, with a maximum of 30 hours per :hree-year
period. - .

L. Preparation and presentation at the pational Academy or

coastituent chapter level of a scientific ruedical exhibit, Limis
of 15 hours per three-year period.

M. Any educatiogal activity produced by an orga.mzat:on or
institution =ppfoved by the Accreditation Council for
Contisuing Medical Education or which meets the criteria for
the AMA Physician’s Recognition Award Category | credit,

credit,

N. Othar werthwhile medical educational group experisnc:
and programs, which may or may not be documentable, tb
ars not nacessarily produced by an accredited ingtitution
organizaticn but zre of 2 nature of earichmeant to the fam!
physician, (Examples of such group astivities include inform
bospital education activities, journal ¢lubs and study groups
Limit of 25 hours per three-year period.

ALTERNATIYE SOURCES FOR CREDIT CT

O. AAFP members who bhave participated in especiall
designed continuing medical education, e.g
mini-resideacy/fellowship programs; courses or programs -
spacific bDeaefit to a member’s practice for which
respensible instirution/organization did not apply for AAT
credit, are eligible to apply to the Commission on Continuir
Medical EdL.c.atlcn for appropriate AAFP credit on =
individual basis.

P. Hours speat in any continuing medical education activi
not specifically zoted above may be submitted 0 U
eppropriate coastifuent chapter committes for considerztion .
That committes bas the option to award Preseribed -

‘Elective credit to any offering where the AAFP Definition ¢

Continuing Medical Education bas been applied to tk
offering and the criteria met, or to rgjest any hours o
specifically approved by the AAFP Comrmission oo Ceatinuir
Medical Educaticn. If there is doubt as to whether the setivi
meets the AAFF Definition of Coatinuing Medical Educatio
the advice of the regional advisor rmust be sought.

(The abeve requiremsnts and sources of credit were adept
by the Academy’s Congress of Delegates in Oetober 1588,

AAFP DEFINTTION OF CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION

1o maintain and improve the abxl:ty of the family pHysxcian to prov:dc high quahty paucmt care.

This educaticn prc—cess encompasses all the areas usualy enc.ow_ute red by the family ﬁ:yéicim necessary to c.zrrjf out ther

responsiniiities.

For further information conract:

CME Aceraditation Services

Division of Education
American Academy of Family Physicians
8880 Ward Parloway
Kansas City, Missourl 64114-2797
WATS LINE (800) 274-2237
Alaska and Missouri Call COLLECT (816) 333-9700

COCMEed:gs
3453 . S -




AMERICAN ACADEMY OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
- 8880 Ward Parkway, Kansas City, Missour! 64114

The Amerjcan Academy of Family Physicians is thc national association of family doctars.

It is one of the |argest national medical

organizations, with more than 72,000 members in 50 states, D.C.. Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, and Guam. Until October 3, 1971, it was
known as the American Academy of General Practice. The name was changed in order 1o reflect more accurately the changing nature of

primary health care

The Academy was founded in 1947 to promote and maintzin kigh quality standards for family doctors who are providing continuing
comprehensive healtn care to the public. Other major purposes of the Academy include:

To provide respoasible advecacy for and education of patisnts and the public in all health-related matters;

To preserve and promote quality cost-effective health care;

To promote the science and art of family medicine and to ¢nsure an optimal supaly of well-trained family physicians,
To promote and maintain high standards among physiciéns who practice fani'ily medicine;

Ta preserve the right of family physicians 10 engage in medical and surgxca] procedures for which nhev are qualified by tramlng
and experience;

To provide advocacy, representation and leadership for the specizliy of family practice;
Tomaintain and provide an organization with high standards to fulfill the above purposes and to represent the needs of its members.

Rezlizing that the family doctor’s effectiveness depends on sound, up-to-date continuing educaticn, the founders wrote into the Bylaws the
requirement that members must complete a minirmum of 150 hours of approved continuing education every thres years to retain membership.

This guarantee of competence is met through communv education Drcgrams publication orpresentatmn of original scientific papers, medical
school or postgraduate teaching, residency trzining, ete. Accurate and current records are kept to ensure that individuz] requirements are met;
(T they are not, the member is dropped from the rells, The requirement, unique at time of origin, has through the vears become a standard

for an increasing number of other medical groups.

Tne Academy is governed by a Congress of Delegates composed of two delegates from each of the 55 constituent chapiers, as well as from
resident and student groups. The Congress meets annually immediately prior to the Academy’s Annual Scientific Assembly and has sole
power to estabiish policies and define principles. These policies and programs are carried out between annual mestings by the Board of
Directors and 2 number of standing and special commissions and committees. Delegates to the Congress of Delegates elect the Board, which
in tum appoints commissicn 2Ad committee members. Constituent chapters are similarly organized.

The Annual Scientifié Assembly is the Academy's largest mcetiqg fo; gonti_nuing education, drawing more than 12,000 physiciars.and
visitors. ' T _ — — —

The Academy was instrumental in the establishment of family practice, 2 derivative of classical general practice, as medicine’s twentieth
primary specialty. The AMA’s Councilon Medlcal Edqggtm and the independent American Board of Medical Specialties granted approval
10 2 certifying board in family practice, the basic structural requisite of a medical specialty, on February 8, 1969, Examinations have been
given annually since 1970; and recertification examinations, annually since 1976. Active ABFP diplomates after the July 1991 examination

total more than 38,000. About 85 percent of these are AAFP members.

The Academy maintains national headquarters in Kansas City, Missouri with a professional staff o200 persons. it publishesamonthlyclinical
journal for physicians in primary care entitled, American Family Physician, with a circulation of 150,000; a monthly all-member news and
features publication entitled, A4FP Reporter, and a quarteriy practice-based research journal, Family Practice Research Journal,

"




 Computerized CHE Records Fact Sheet
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AAFP CME Requirements -for Re-election to Hgm@grship

Active members must accrue at Teast 150 hours of AAFP prescribed and elective
credit within szach thres-year reporiing period, of which:

0 nct more than 25 are from enrichment activities

0 not more than 30 are from presentation or publication of an original
scientific or sccioceconomic paper pertaining to medical care at AAFP,
constituent chapier or other medical society leveid

0 not more than 45 are from publicaticn in a state or national “"refereed"
Journal of original scientific or sociceconomic research pertaining fo
patient care, public or community health

) not more than IS5 are from preparation and presentation at AAFP or
constituent chapter level of a2 scientific medical exhibit

0 at Teast 25 are from group lezrning activities -

0 at Teast 75 must be AAFP prescribed credit

Affiliate members are due for re-election on December 31 of the year in which
they enroll and each December 31 thereafter. Active members are due for re-
electicn on December 31 after three years of membership and every three years
thereafter. Your current re-election pericd is noted on the AAFP CHME printout
below your address.

Definitions of AAFP Prescribed and Elective Credit

Prescribed credit indicates programs have received prior approval from the
AAFP and have family physician input to ensure relevance to family practice.
{The AMA accepts AAFP Prescribed credit as equivalent to AMA Category 1 credit
for the Physicians Recognition Award.) Programs approved for Elective credit
do not require family practice input. (Programs nof individuaily approved by
the AAFP but sponsored by an institution accredited by the ACCME for AMA
Category 1 credit.are automatically acceptable as AAFP Elective credit.)

Programs not accredited by either the AAFP or the ACCME are Nondesignated
credit (and are not acceptadle in fulfiiling your AAFP CME requirements).

How We Help You Meet the AAFP CME Requiremenfs

o) we automatically record your credits for the CME we offer, including
Home Study Seif-Assessment, Video CME, Clinical Quiz (American Family
Physician) and FPM Quiz {Family Practice Management), each time you
submit a quiz card to AAFP, and for thas Annual Scientific Assembly if
you submit the Assembly Evaluation and CME Reporting Form at the
conclusion of the meeting (the CME Reporting bcoth is in the Tobby of
the convention hall)

) we provide easy-to-use yellow and green reporting cards on which to
submit all of your other CME
o] we send you a copy of your computer CME record once each year, to allow

You to review it for accuracy and completeness

———




0 we identify AAFP-approved CME in AFP’s "CME Calendar" and via phane (bj
date; Tocation and topic)

How to Report Your CHE to BAFP

Each January we send you a green personalized card to report credits accrued
in the previous year for enrichment activities, teaching, presentation or
publicatien of a paper and preparation and presentation of a scientific
medical exhibit. A1l of your other activities should be reported on your
yellow personalized computer reporting cards or on the reverse side of your
AAFP CME printout. You may request additional reporting cards and printouts
at any time by phone.

Benefits of Reporting Your CME to AAFP

Your constituent chapter reviews your CME record to determine your eligibility
for AAFP re-election and the AAFP's earned degree of Fellow. In addition,
although CHME requirements of the AAFP and many other organizations are not
equivalent, reporting your CME to AAFP in a timely manner will help you in the
following ways:

0 re-election to AAFP Active membership automatically qualifies you for
the AMA’s Physicians Recognitjon Award
0 Active members due for recertification need not report CHE to the ABFP

if they have been active AAFP members for at least five years, re-
etection has occurred within the preceding three years and sufficient
CME (as defined by the ABFP) has been reported to AAFP since the iast
re-election

0 assures you of a timely computer record which will assist you in
reporting your CME to other organizations

Please Remember...
0 It is your responsibility to report your CHE to AAFP. You can make this

effort easier by creating a file in which to keep all CME material and
by asking a staff person to maintain the file and submit the information

for you.

) AI]_bgt‘ZS of your required hours can be obfained from seif-learning
activities. Submitting the quiz cards from American Family Physician
and Family Practice Management eachk month will alse fulfill your =
Prescribed credit requiremenis.

0 You can identify AAFP-approved CHME by reading "CME Calendar" in American
Family Physjcian and c¢alling us.

0 Additional reporting cards and/or printouts are available at any time on
request.

Computerized CME Records Department
American Academy of Family Physicians
_ 8880 Ward Parkway
Kansas City, Missouri 64114
1-800-274-2237




MARSHALL . :
UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF NURSING

--400 Hal Greer Boulevard
Huntington, West Virginia 25755-3500
204/896-6750 T

June 28, 1894

Janet Fairchild, MS, EN : §
Executive Secretary
WV State Beoard of Examiners

for Registered Professional Nurses

101 Dee Drive S -
Charlesteon, WV 25311

Dear Janet:

I have enclosed some comments regarding the draft of
Legislative Rules Series 1 and 2 for consideraticon by the West
Virginia Board cf Examiners for Registered Professiocnal Nurses.

Sincerely yours,

s

T
L ha B. Welch, RN, EA4D
Dean

/e

"Enclosure

A STATE UNIVERSITY OF WEST VIRGINIA
AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER




SUGGESTIONS FOR STATE BCARD

- - ————— —— —

First, this may not be up for consideration at this peoint,
but I believe the title of the board should be just "registered"®,
not "registered professional®™, in preparation for different

testing for baccalaureate level.

Title 19
Series 1

2.13 add "certified nurse practitioner™ in "...prescribed by

a licensed physician, gertified nurse practitioner, or a licensed

dentist...."

5.4 "to write™ is an outdated term., Should be "%o_ take the
state licensing exam...."

7.1 If "survey" means site wvisit, I beleive it should not be
mandatory if a school has full NLN accreditation and the state
board scores are deemed acceptable to the Board.

10.1 If a school has NLN accreditation (without a warning),
the annual report should be abbreviated and not so repetitive.

Title 19
Series 2

5.1 Faculty should have a ainipun of a masters degree in
nursing. (There are doctoral nursing programs which accept non-
traditional students.) I alsoc believe it is important to keep
this educational standard as a goal to work toward. Faculty have
until Jan. 1, 2000 to do this and access to graduate nursing
prograns is available. e -l

5.2 Board should not regquire a report on faculty qualiifica-

ticns on appointment. It would ke in the annual report. 5.3

-




states the conditions of employment must be consistent with the
parent institution.

7.3 e. Addition of new faculty should not be considered a

major change requiring board approval.

Title 19
Series 3

3.2.1.1.1 Change %sit for" to "take".

3.1.5.2 NCLEX-RN has been adopted, has it not?

3.6.4 Candidate should not have to petition to repeat the
exam after just two failures. There should be a time limit such
as that they must petition and show action to correct deficien-
cies if 2 or more years have elapsed since graduation. Definite
criteria must be established as to what is acceptable Taction®.

3.7.1 Endorsement should ke if they are licensed to be
"registered nurses". Not all states use "registered profession-
al®™, and again this will eventually become an issue.

Title 19
Series 11

2.4 Again, ‘insert certified nurse practitioner as one who

can prescribe.

3.2.3 Exempt a licensee who is enrolled in at least & ¢redit
hours for 1 vear in a program leading to a higher degree in

nursing.

Dr. Judith Sortet

—
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. - ROBERT C. BYRD
_ HEAITH SCIENCES CENTER
- OF WEST VIRGINIA UNIVERSITY
May 24, 1994

Janet Fairchild, MS, RN
Executive Secretary

WV Board of Examiners for Rn's
101 Dee Drive

Charleston, WV 25311-1620

Dear Janet:

I will be unable to aftend the public hearing on July 29 related to the proposed ruIe on
continuing education. However, I wanted to send my input for the record.

I do support mandatory continuing education for licensure renewal of RNs. Such a
requirement, although minimal, helps assure quality in nursing services especially in light of
- the rapid changes occurring in the health care field. The 30 contact hour requirement is
quite reasonable. The criteria specifying modes of study and acceptable and nonacceptable
activities seem fair and clearly delineated.

Mandatory continuing education is required of RN's in other states and has caused no
hardships. Instead, it shows that the practicing nurse is assuming responsibility for life long
learning necessary to sustain a viable career.

Sincerely,
Mey p Betclec

Mary Jo Butler, RN, EdD

MIB/an

P

7 School of Nursing—Charleston Division _ . -
3110 MacCorkls Avenae  Charleston WV 25304-1289 Telephone 304 347- 1”53
Equal Opportunity/ Affirmative Action Institution
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~ ROBERT C. BYRD
HEAHHSCMESCEM 1004

OF WEST VIRGINIA UNIV'ERS

Janet Fairchild

WYV Board of RN Examiners
101 Dee Drive
Charleston, WV 25311-1620

Dear Ms. Fairchild:

Dr. Mary Jo Butler shared with the faculty the proposed changes of the nurse practice act in
regards to continuing education and licensure. This letter is in response to those proposed

changes.

I wholeheartedly support the mandatory continuing education proposal. I have one
reservation regarding the licensure proposal, and that is in regards to the replacement of
nursing theory courses with military experience.

I should first explain my bias in regards to this. I have been a nurse for 17 vears and in the
clinical setting that period of rime. I have had the experience of working with a few RN’s
who were licensed as a result of their military experience. 1 felt that they fell short of
considering the patient holistically and definitely had no consideration on how nursing theory
can positively effect health changes in the patient.

I believe that nursing needs to firm up its boundaries and become selective regarding who we
allow Into this profession. If a military candidate truly wants to be a nurse, I believe we
should expect that candidate to enroll and complete nursing theory courses from an
accredited coliege or university.

I also believe given our economic forecast, impending health care reform, and presently the
"glut” of nurses in the field, its time to mandate a baccalaureate degree as the minimal
educational preparation for nursing licensure,
I hope these comments are helpful. I appreciate the opportunity to voice my views,

Most sincerely,

Mary Beth Casdorph. RN, CS, MSN
Faculty, WVU School of Nursing

MBC/an

School of Nursing—Charleston Division
3110 MacCorkle Avenue Charleston WV 25304.1209 Telephone 304 347-1233
Equal Opportunity/ Affirmative Action Institution
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Theresa G. Miller, <RNA
#3 Heather Court
Huntington, WV 25705

July 19, 1994

State of West Virginia
Board of Examiners for R.N.
101 Des Drive

Charleston, Wv 25311-i62C

Board of Directcors of R.N., Licensing:

This Lletter 1is in reference to the proposed new program for
continuing education for recertification of registered nurses.
There are several points that are unclear.

1. Will the nursing board accept continuing education accredited
by the American Association of Nurse Aneshtetists (2AaNA). This
group was not recognized on your previously published list.

2. Will there be a uniform record keeping service for continuing
education credits and recertification. This issue is of concern.
I have attended a number of nursing seminars in Xentucky where
continuing educaticn has been required for some time. However,
their record keeping process was poorly done, resulting in many
problems for scme R.N.S. Some of the nurses were even denlied
recertification.

3. Will the time frame for continuing education match the one we
already have for our nurse anesthetists certification progran.
Hopefully, we will nct have to duplicate education credits. The
AANA has been participants in the continuing education process for
years, but more and more the burden of expense has fallen on
individuals.

Thank you for taking time to review our concerns. I can be reached
at the above address c¢r at (304) 736-4597 1if you have further
information.

Sincerely,
Greias P e, CRUA

THERESA G. MILLER, CRNA




